
Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 
Call to Order/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
The Town Council of the Town of Belhaven met in regular session on Monday, July 27, 
2009 at 7:00 P.M.  This meeting immediately followed the reception held for former and 
retired volunteer rescue members which started at 6:00 P.M. at the Boyette Civic Center 
at 257 W. Pungo Street.  Mayor Adam W. O’Neal called the meeting to order with the 
following Council members present:  Steve W. Carawan, J. Nelson Guy, Mayor Pro-
Tem; Howard D. Moore, McKee “Mac” Pigott and Robert L. Stanley.  Town Manager 
Dr. Guinn Leverett, Town Finance Officer Mr. Kyle J. DeHaven and Town Clerk Marie 
J. Adams were also present.  Mayor O’Neal recognized and introduced Mr. Johnny 
Donnell Clark who gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes – Regular and Closed Session – July 13, 2009 
Mayor O’Neal announced that the Regular and Closed Session minutes of July 13, 2009 
were open for review and approval.  There being no corrections to the minutes, 
Councilman Carawan made the motion to approve as written.  Councilman Stanley 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 5 to 0. 
 
Public Comments 
Mayor O’Neal asked for any comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
Auction of Surplus Property by Electronic Means 
Mayor O’Neal stated that Town Manager Leverett had brought before the Council the 
idea of having surplus property sales on line instead of local auctions.  Town Manager 
Leverett stated that he had learned of an electronic way to auction off surplus items and 
would need permission from the council to create an account with Govdeals.com.  
Councilman Carawan questioned the cost to create the on-line account.  Town Manager 
Leverett stated that the service was free.  Town Manager Leverett stated that the Council 
would still declare items surplus and with this program the items could then be sold on 
line, therefore not having to store items to have an auction.  Councilman Carawan made 
the motion that the Town Manager be allowed to create an account with Govdeals.com 
(auction website) to sell surplus town equipment.  Councilman Stanley seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously, 5 to 0. 
 
The Wooten Company – USDA Rural Development Rehabilitation Project 
Mayor O’Neal stated that the Town had received funding for the Inflow and Infiltration 
(I&I) and to replace/repair the sewer by-pass (receiving sewer from the County) and that 
there was a $1,000,000 match.  Mayor O’Neal stated that Town Manager Leverett has 
learned that the Town could apply for a grant/loan for that $1,000,000 match and that 
permission was needed for The Wooten Company to pursue this additional funding 
through USDA.  Councilman Pigott stated that The Wooten Company has performed 
well for the Town in past projects and asked that their hours for this project be tabulated.  
Councilman Pigott made the motion for the Town to work with The Wooten Company to 
pursue these additional funds from the USDA to aid in funding the force main by-pass or 
to seek other sources to find matches sources of $1,000,000.00.  Councilman Moore 
seconded the motion which carried, 5 to 0.  Councilman Carawan stated that this upgrade 



Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 
in the sewer by-pass was necessitated because of the inflow of sewer from the county and 
½ of the matching grant should be the responsibility of Beaufort County. 
 
Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Leverett reported briefly on the following:  1) meeting scheduled this 
Wednesday, July 29 with Mr. Jeff Kidwell, who is heading up the Battalina Creek effort 
for the insurance company which wrote the bond for the subdivision.  Mr. Howard 
Nichols will also be working on this as he was the project engineer for The East Group 
for this development and has a wealth of background information for this project.  The 
Town now has reason to believe that this project will now be done sooner than later.  2) 
NC Water Resources Congress will meet in Raleigh on August 11, 2009.  Mayor O’Neal 
stated that Town Manager Leverett made it known how important this agency was in 
contacts in Washington, DC for getting the breakwater project funded.  Mayor O’Neal 
also thanked Town Manager Leverett for his insistence to become a member of the NC 
Water Resources Congress and its’ importance.  3) Breakwater – construction plans 
should be ready in August and plan to award a contract for replacement this September 
and construction to begin this Fall 2009. 
 
Miscellaneous Council/Mayor Concerns 
Mayor O’Neal recognized Councilman Guy.  Councilman Guy presented the following 
information to the public. 



Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 
 
Councilman Guy also referenced an article in the July 22, 2009 Beaufort-Hyde News, 
concerning the EMS for the Belhaven Community.  Councilman Guy noted several 
quotes by Mr. Ricky White of White Oak EMS who is providing the EMS for the 
Belhaven Community as a paid 24/7 service as quotes by County Manager Spruill and 
Commissioner Richardson.  



Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 

 



Belhaven Town Council 
Minutes – Regular Session 

Monday, July 27, 2009 
There was no second following Councilman Guy’s motion to reinstate the Belhaven 
Volunteer EMS.  The motion failed. 
 
Councilman Pigott stated there was no voting in closed session, but discussion and agreed 
in closed session to dissolve Belhaven Volunteer EMS.  Councilman Pigott stated that he 
called Chief Derrick Myers and told him to not move the trucks unless called by himself 
or another Council member. 
 
Mayor O’Neal stated that he made it a point not to be critical of the EMS and that now 
citizens have intermediate care (start IV’s etc.) when picked up instead of having to wait 
to get to the hospital for that type of treatment.  Mayor O’Neal stated that the community 
was now getting quicker service and asked how you could be against that.  Mayor O’Neal 
stated that before the 24/7 EMS paid service, there was a call on East Street and that it 
was not answered by Belhaven Volunteer and Bath Community Volunteer transported the 
patient.   Mayor O’Neal stated that you could not have both volunteer EMS and a paid 
EMS service.  Mayor O’Neal stated that the former volunteer EMS were using the town 
Council by involving politics in this transition.  Mayor O’Neal stated that the former 
volunteer EMS did a great job when a lot of the volunteers worked in town, but over the 
past couple of years 2 -3 volunteers could not handle all the calls.  Mayor O’Neal 
explained that the full-time EMS service was provided to the citizens and the community 
with no increase in taxes, etc. and it was time to move on and was very disappointed that 
the issue was used for politics.  Councilman Stanley asked to make this scenario clearer 
for everybody.  Example:  White Oak (the full-time 24/7 paid EMS) receives a call out of 
the town limits and within minutes another call for an in-town resident comes in.  Who is 
the mutual aid?  Mayor O’Neal stated that mutual aid (which would be Pamlico Beach, 
Pinetown or Bath Community) would be called for the in-town call should White Oak be 
on another call. 
  
Councilman Guy stated that he was not against the White Oak but for Mutual Aid, the 
Belhaven Volunteer EMS should be used as the other departments would take too long to 
back up.  Councilman Guy stressed the fact that the mutual aid for EMS should be closer. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business, Mayor O’Neal declared the meeting adjourned at 7:34 
P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Marie J. Adams, CMC 
Town Clerk 


